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Physical Appearance of the Site

I. Overview

The site consists of a brick house in Anglo-Italian style and
a large 45' x 80' barn. Both are largely unmodified and reasonably
well-preserved examples of Victorian architecture during the late
1800's when this was a leading farm in the community. They are
located on the original Cfafk claim that was the first settlement
in Johnson County. Restoration work now underway on both the house
and barn is currently directed toward making the buildings weather-
proof. ' | a

The house is located on a wooded slope in the hills rising
from the Iowa River bottom. The first 1% story section of the
house was built in 1864 using local orange-red brick and limestone.

As the farm prospered the McCollisters added a fancier front sec-

tion (1880) and made the original section two stories high. The

use of Italiante windows added a degree of elegance to the basic o
brick house with white Victorian ornamentation. We recently found
that the house windows were barn red with white frames thus giving
the place a consistent rural color scheme.

The barn still has the old horse stalls and wooden milking
stanchions. Strangely it was never modernized to accept recent
mechanized farming methods. Nor was it used so extensively that
it is worn out. Rather the original seven carloads of lumber have :
acquired a rich patina on the inside and a weathered maturity on ;1

the outside. Its size and unusual tack room with adjoining porch
resulted in it being recorded in the 1912 Johnson County History.
Repair parts are readily available from other old barns being torn

down in this vicinity.

II. Physical Description -

A. General Description: The site is an example of a rural
homestead of a prosperous cattle farmer iq the nineteenth century.
Buildings to be restored are the house, main barn, and smokehouse.
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The house and barn are in reasonably good condition with few modi-
fications and on their original sites. Restoration work is well
underway with the primary goal of weatherproofing against further
deterioration mostly accpmplished. The prospect of the original
settlement of Napoleon being restored as part of a park project
across the highway looks very good at this point. The two sites
would then complement each other providing historical prospective
to the settlement of this region.

B. Description of the House Exterior:

1. Overall dimensions: The house is in the form of a T
with major dimensions of 38 x 70 feet. It is two
stories high.

Foundation: Native limestone about two feet thick.
Wall construction: Native brick; three bricks thick
on the first story and two bricks thick for the upper
story. It is in reasonably good condition and will
be repointed in the near future. The orangé color of
the brick contrasts nicely with the white trim and
surrounding evergreens.

4. Structural system: Masonry walls with wood interior
framing. The wood framing is in good condition but
sagging with age. The sag is being remedied and
insulation installed.

5. Porches: The original front porch was modified to a
screened in form. It is now nearly back to its origi-
nal form. A side porch on the north side was also
screened. Its disposition has not been finalized.
The back porch and woodshed were added when the back
section was raised to two stories.
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6.

Chimneys: There were several original chimneys for
room heaters. These have mostly been removed to below
the roof line. Disposition has not been finalized.
Doorways: The front door is capped with a segmental
arch matching thpse of. the windows. The windows’

are frosted with a floral design. The side and back
doors are not particularly noteworthy.

Windows: The windows with the exception of those in
the older first story are Italianate with curved tops,
sills of limestone, and ornate galvenized metal caps.
Bay windows on both stories overlook the river valley.
Roof: The gable framed roof has a unusually wide
frieze with an ornamental design cut into it. Brackets
add an air of Victorian elegance to it. Roof trim is
painted white. Roof cover is currently asbestos but

I would 1ike to install old metal roofing similar to
the original.

C. Description of the House Interior:

1.

Floor plans are included in the Appendix.

a. Basement: There is a full cellar with a cement
floor under the house. It contains two gas forced
air furnaces and an old brick cordwood furnace.

b. First floor: The house has three entrances. The
main entrance was through tulip doors to the large
parlor. There is a side entrance and vestibule
with access to both sections and a door to the
kitchen off the back porch. The original house
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had a kitchen-dining area, living room, pantry,

and side porch. The parlors, music room, vesibule,
woodshed, and back porch were added in 1880-1881.
The 1iving room was then used as a dining room.

c. Second floor: The room divisions are similar to
the first floor with five bedrooms occupying this
level. There is a small sitting room off the large
bedroom which has a bay window.

d. Attic: The attic has a floor in the newer section.

2. Stairways: There is a central stairway going upstairs
and one going downstairs. The entranceway, stairway,
and hall have an interesting original color combination
of red, yellow, and brownish tan that will be restored.

3. Flooring: The living room in the old section has a
beautiful parquet floor of alternating walnut and ash
boards. The other floors are of painted, wide, hard
pine. They are in good condition and will be retained.

4. Walls: The exterior walls are mostly plaster on brick
and plaster on lathe for interior walls. We are putting
Blocbond and heavy insulation on some walls to make the
place livable. Ceilings are plaster on lathe. The
older section has wainscoting. We have preserved the
original wallpaper we have found and will try to have
it reproduced.

5. Doorways and doors: Paneled wooden doorways were used
throughout. Doors in the older section have transoms
above them. The newer section has ornate wood moulding
around doors and windows and on the baseboards. The
older section has plain wooden frames and baseboards.
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6.

Trim: We found the original gold leaf paint on the
window mouldings and will keep that against an ivory
paint background. The Tiving room wainscoting and
storage closets have been stippled. The kitchen
features its original wainscot board ceiling.
Hardware: Door hinges and window locks in the new
section are elaborately Victorian. The handles on
the tulip doors are also ornate. Interior door knobs
are white porcelain.

Lighting: The house was originally lighted with gas.
This was later converted to electricity. We are
replacing the old wiring with a modern conduit system
using old gas fixtures converted to electricity where
possible. The main parlor has a nice electrical fix-
ture that will be kept.

Mechanical: The house was originally heated with a
huge cordwood furnace that still exists in the base-
ment. Current heating is gas forced air. We are
removing a fireplace added in 1929 and replacing it
with a Franklin stove. The flue pipes indicate that
metal stoves were a primary original source of heat.
We are using urban renewal plumbing fixtures in res-
toration of the bathrooms.

D. Outbuildings:

1.

The foundation and fire pit exists for the original
smokehouse. We found out that it was brick so using
this information and drawings of other smokehouses
it will be rebuilt and perhaps used.
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2.

Barn: The barn is a thing of beauty. It is prac-
tically original inside: Complete with horse stalls,
wooden milking stanchions, wooden hay handling equip-
ment and all. The roof has deteriorated and conse-
quently some parts are not in good shape. But other
barns of the same vintage are coming down so I can
get repair parts. Windows had unique trim and the
porch was certainly unusual. Someone took great
pride in building it and James McCollister had its
photograph included in the 1912 Johnson County History.

The foundation is of native limestone. The
framing is of seven carloads of lumber using large
beams all hand-pegged. It has withstood many a
windstorm so it has to be strong. The original roof
was wooden shingles which was later covered by gal-
venized metal. I am trying to repair the metal
roofing although it is a hard, dangerous job.
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Uk Historical Significance

I. Historical Events and Persons Connected with the Site

The site is important historically for two reasons: 1) it is
part of the Philip Clark homestead that played an important role in.
’:% early Johnson County and Iowa history and 2) it features rich soil,
zaff timber, and water necessary to make it the basis for an outstanding
| pioneer family who made significant community contributions. For-
tunately there has been enough interest in the history of the com-
munity that many details of the early pioneers have been recorded.
In addition many documents relating to the operations of this farm
, during the 1800's and consturction of the house and barn have been
Aff saved. Thus both the buildings and the records of the activities
- that occurred about them are reasonably well-preserved.

Philip Clark, the initial homesteader of this site, came to
this area about 1836 at the invitation of John Gilbert, a fur
trader who settled here in 1826. The site was opened for home-
steading by the Second Black Hawk Purchase of land from the In-
dians in 1837. Clark's claim was protected by The Claim Associ-
ation of Johnson County until the land was first offered for sale
on August 3rd of 1840 in Dubuque, Iowa. He was one of 57 men to
make the first purchase of land in this county at $1.25 per acre.
He retained the land until the McCollister bought it from him in
1863. There was a slight problem of lynching of a man in 1859
who settled on the land while Clark was in California for the
gold rush. On the basis of Philip Clark's early claim, the site
is listed as the first farm in Johnson County.
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Clark tried to start a town named Napoleon on his claim just
across the road from this site. It served as the location of the
county seat, first post office, and district court in 1839. The
county was officially organized there in March of 1839. Napoleon
was nominated to be the capitol of Iowa in 1838, but failing in
that bid, was designated as the meeting site for a committee that
was to select a site for the future capitol of Iowa. That com-
mittee met on May 1st, 1839 and selected a nearby site that was to
become Iowa City. The city is considering purchasing the site of
Napoleon for a park and may resurrect it.

Philip Clark sold the farm to James McCollister starting in
1863. We have the deed for this transaction. During the late
1800's this farm grew to about 750 acres. James' father, father-
in-law, and son also had farms in this valley. During this time
the family prospered, becoming a leading cattle shipper courted by
Chicago grain, cattle and stock markets. The Chicago railroad
link came to Iowa City in 1855 making Iowa City a major railroad
terminal until it moved on west in the 1860's. McCollister had
the capital and resources necessary to take good advantage of these
factors. He built a large and elaborate barn to house the cattle
operation and a fine Victorian mansion to reflect his prosperity.
The records of the farming activities indicate that McCollister
was a leader in using new farming techniques and in seeking better
markets for his produce. He was also active in several community
organizations and the Democratic Party.
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II. Physical History of the Site

A. Owners of Site: Philip Clark owned these acres from
from 1837 to 1863. The McCollister family retained them until
September, 1974 when they were sold to William and Linda Norton,
the present occupants. James McCollister lived here until his
death in 1927 at which time his grandson, Charles Showers, moved
into the house and took over the operations of the farm. After
his death in 1973 the farm was put up for sale.

B. Date of Erection: The papers found in the house show
payment for bricks and building the house in August, 1864. Sub-
sequent receipts for the new section are dated 1880. Bills for
materials for the barn indicate that it was built in the early
1880's.

C. Builder: The old section receipt shows the names of
David Borts, A. Lenz and John Gruber. J.J. Hotz, a contractor
who had worked in Chicago and New York, possibly designed as
well as built the new section of the house. He is also the con-
tractor for the raising of the roof to two stories on the old
part and the addition of the woodshed and backporch in 1880-1.

D. Alterations and Additions: The only changes were made
in 1929 when Charles Showers made some improvements. They removed
the stairway in the kitchen to install a bathroom and put a stair-
way to the basement in the old section. They had a fireplace
built in the Tliving room which is being removed to put in a
Franklin stove. Also they enlarged the front porch and screened
in it and the side porch.
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